Telaria, Inc. Form 10-Q November 08, 2018 Table of Contents

UNITED STATES SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION WASHINGTON, D.C. 20549

FORM 10-Q

(Mark One)

 \circ QUARTERLY REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the quarterly period ended September 30, 2018

OR

o TRANSITION REPORT PURSUANT TO SECTION 13 OR 15(d) OF THE SECURITIES EXCHANGE ACT OF 1934

For the transition period from to Commission File Number 001-35982

TELARIA, INC.

(Exact name of registrant as specified in its charter)

Delaware 20-5480343

(State or another jurisdiction of

incorporation or organization) (I.R.S. Employer Identification Number)

222 Broadway, 16th Floor, New York, NY 10038 (Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

Registrant's telephone number, including area code: (646) 723-5300

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant (1) filed all reports required to be filed by Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to file such reports), and (2) has been subject to such filing requirements for the past 90 days. Yes ý No o Indicate by check mark whether the registrant has submitted electronically every Interactive Data File required to be submitted pursuant to Rule 405 of Regulation S-T during the preceding 12 months (or for such shorter period that the registrant was required to submit such files). Yes ý No o

Indicate by check mark whether the registrant is a large accelerated filer, an accelerated filer, a non-accelerated filer, a smaller reporting company, or an emerging growth company. See the definitions of "large accelerated filer," "accelerated filer," "smaller reporting company," and "emerging growth company" in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act.

Large accelerated filer o Accelerated filer x Non-accelerated filer o Smaller reporting company o

Emerging growth company x

If an emerging growth company, indicate by check mark if the registrant has elected not to use the extended transition period for complying with any new or revised financial accounting standards provided pursuant to Section 7(a)(2)(B) of the Securities Act. \circ

Indicate by check mark if the registrant is a shell company (as defined in Rule 12b-2 of the Exchange Act). Yes o No ý

As of November 7, 2018, there were 49,571,743 shares of the registrant's common stock, par value \$0.0001 per share, outstanding. Share outstanding number as of November 7, 2018 includes the Company's repurchase of 2,000,000 shares of its common stock in a privately negotiated transaction.

.

Table of Contents TELARIA, INC FORM 10-Q

TABLE OF CONTENTS

PART I.	FINANCIAL INFORMATION	PAGE
Item 1.	Financial Statements	
	Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets as of September 30, 2018 (unaudited) and December 31, 2017	<u>3</u>
	Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the three and nine months ended September 30 2018 and 2017 (unaudited)	<u>4</u>
	Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss) for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017 (unaudited)	<u>5</u>
	Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 (unaudited)	<u>6</u>
	Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017 (unaudited)	7
	Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (unaudited)	<u>8</u>
Item 2.	Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations	<u>24</u>
Item 3.	Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk	<u>36</u>
Item 4.	Controls and Procedures	<u>37</u>
PART II.	OTHER INFORMATION	<u>38</u>
Item 1.	Legal Proceedings	<u>38</u>
Item 1A.	Risk Factors	<u>38</u>
Item 2.	Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds	<u>38</u>
Item 3.	<u>Defaults Upon Senior Securities</u>	<u>38</u>
Item 4.	Mine Safety Disclosures	<u>38</u>
Item 5.	Other Information	<u>38</u>
Item 6.	Exhibits	<u>39</u>
SIGNAT	<u>'URES</u>	

CERTIFICATIONS

Table of Contents

Part I — FINANCIAL INFORMATION

Item 1. — Financial Statements

Telaria, Inc.

Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

(in the domination, enterpression and per situate during)	September 30,	December	31,
	2018 (unaudited)	2017	
Assets			
Current assets:			
Cash and cash equivalents	\$70,567	\$ 76,320	
Accounts receivable, net	67,963	59,288	
Prepaid expenses and other current assets	3,502	2,499	
Total current assets	142,032	138,107	
Long-term assets:			
Property and equipment, net	3,009	3,194	
Intangible assets, net	4,654	1,307	
Goodwill	9,619	6,320	
Deferred tax assets	332	332	
Other assets	2,029	1,168	
Total long-term assets	19,643	12,321	
Total assets	\$161,675	\$ 150,428	
Liabilities and stockholders' equity			
Current liabilities:			
Accounts payable and accrued expenses	\$75,398	\$ 59,419	
Deferred rent, short-term	777	808	
Contingent consideration on acquisition	1,443		
Deferred income	4	674	
Other current liabilities	771	53	
Total current liabilities	78,393	60,954	
Long-term liabilities:			
Deferred rent	5,947	5,260	
Deferred tax liabilities	1,393	338	
Other non-current liabilities	132	737	
Total liabilities	85,865	67,289	
Commitments and contingencies			
Stockholders' equity:			
Common stock, \$0.0001 par value: 250,000,000 shares authorized as of September 30,			
2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively; 56,813,104 and 55,136,038 shares issued and	5	5	
52,967,608 and 51,290,542 outstanding as of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017,	J	5	
respectively			
Treasury stock, at cost: 3,845,496 shares as of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017		(8,443)
Additional paid-in capital	292,166	288,277	
Accumulated other comprehensive loss	. ,	(232)
Accumulated deficit		(196,468)
Total stockholders' equity	75,810	83,139	

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

\$161,675 \$ 150,428

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

Table of Contents

Telaria, Inc.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations (in thousands, except share and per share data) (unaudited)

	Three Mo		Nine Mo Septemb	onths Ended
	2018	2017	2018	2017
Revenue	\$13,478	\$ 12,715	35,509	28,788
Cost of revenue	1,868	764	4,032	2,445
Gross profit	11,610	11,951	31,477	26,343
Gloss profit	11,010	11,751	31,777	20,545
Operating expenses:				
Technology and development	2,432	2,116	7,044	6,650
Sales and marketing	5,840	7,461	18,778	21,687
General and administrative	4,306	5,343	14,670	14,990
Restructuring costs	32	_	149	
Depreciation and amortization	523	984	3,198	2,995
Mark-to-market	_	_		148
Total operating expenses	13,133	15,904	43,839	46,470
Loss from continuing operations	(1,523)	(3,953) (12,362) (20,127)
Interest and other income (expense), net:				
Interest expense	(27)	(11) (74) (78
Other income, net	72	662	1,917	624
Total interest and other income, net	45	651	1,843	546
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·			,	
Loss from continuing operations before income taxes	(1,478)	(3,302	(10,519) (19,581)
Provision (benefit) for income taxes	103	(29) 146	56
Loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes	(1,581)	(3,273	(10,665) (19,637)
Coin (loss) on calls of discontinued arountions and of income toward		14.024	(126) 14 024
Gain (loss) on sale of discontinued operations, net of income taxes		14,924	(136) 14,924
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes		643	(126	7,847
Total income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes	_	15,567	(136) 22,771
Net income (loss)	\$(1,581)	\$ 12,294	\$(10,80	1) \$ 3,134
Net income (loss) per share — basic and diluted:				
Loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes	\$(0.03)	\$ (0.06	\$(0.21)) \$ (0.39)
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes		0.30		0.45
Net income (loss)	\$(0.03)		\$(0.21) \$ 0.06
1.00	Ψ(0.05)	Ψ 0.2 !	Ψ (0.21	, 4 0.00
Weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding:				
Basic and diluted	52,716,62	2 6 0,642,34	4 52,265,2	22850,280,849

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

Table of Contents

Telaria, Inc.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Loss)

(in thousands)

(unaudited)

Three Months
Ended September
Ended
Ended

 30,
 September 30,

 2018
 2017
 2018
 2017

Net income (loss) \$(1,581) \$12,294 \$(10,801) \$3,134

Other comprehensive income (loss):

Foreign currency translation adjustments (145) (42) (417) 85 Comprehensive income (loss) \$(1,726) \$12,252 \$(11,218) \$3,219

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

Table of Contents

Telaria, Inc.

Condensed Consolidated Statement of Changes in Stockholders' Equity (in thousands, except share data) (unaudited)

(unaudited)	Common S	tock	Treasury Sto	ock	Additional	Accumul Other	ated	Total	
	Share	Capi	ta \$ hare	Capital	Paid-In Capital	Compreh Loss	ensi le cumulated Deficit	dStockholo Equity	ders'
Balance as of December 31, 2017	55,136,038	\$ 5	(3,845,496)	\$(8,443)	\$288,277	\$ (232) \$(196,468)	\$ 83,139	
Exercise of stock options awards	791,734	_			1,776			1,776	
Stock-based compensation expense	1				2,769			2,769	
Common stock issued for settlement of restricted stock units net of 264,783 shares withheld to satisfy income tax withholding obligations	707,569				(1,179)			(1,179)
Common stock issuance in connection with employee stock purchase plan					523			523	
Net loss							(10,801)	(10,801)
Foreign currency translation adjustment	_		_	_	_	(417) —	(417)
Balance as of September 30, 2018	56,813,104	\$ 5	(3,845,496)	\$(8,443)	\$292,166	\$ (649) \$(207,269)	\$ 75,810	

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

Table of Contents

Telaria, Inc.

Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

(in thousands)

(unaudited)

	Nine M Septem 2018	onths Ended ber 30, 2017	l
Cash flows from operating activities:	2010	2017	
Net loss from continuing operations	\$(10.66	55) \$(19,637	7)
Total income (loss) from discontinued operations	(136) 22,771	,
Adjustments required to reconcile net loss to net cash used in operating activities:	(100) ==,,,,	
Depreciation and amortization expense	3,198	6,217	
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, before income taxes		(15,222)
Bad debt expense	190	385	,
Mark-to-market expense	_	148	
Compensation expense related to the acquisition contingent consideration		1,810	
Loss on disposal of property and equipment	41		
Stock-based compensation expense	2,769	3,706	
Net changes in operating assets and liabilities:	2,707	3,700	
Increase in accounts receivable	(7,260) (8,856)
Decrease in contingent consideration on acquisition		(4,753)
Increase in prepaid expenses, other current assets and other long-term assets	(1,828) (2,701)
Increase in accounts payable and accrued expenses	14,842	5,225	,
Increase in other current liabilities	276	29	
Increase/(decrease) in deferred rent and security deposits payable	656)
Increase in deferred tax liability	_	37	,
(Decrease)/increase in deferred income	(684) 902	
Decrease in other liabilities	(605) —	
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities	794	(10,395)
character of (mark and all and		(=0,000	,
Cash flows from investing activities:			
Purchase of property and equipment	(2,622) (1,017)
Cash received from sale of discontinued operations		49,000	
Expenses paid with respect to sale of discontinued operations		(1,954)
Acquisition, net of cash received	(4,856) —	
Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities	(7,478) 46,029	
Cash flows from financing activities:			
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options awards	1,776	403	
Proceeds from issuance of common stock under employee stock purchase plan	523	446	
Principal portion of capital lease payments		(215)
Treasury stock — repurchase of stock		(2,406)
Tax withholdings related to net share settlements of restricted stock unit awards (RSUs)) (1,011)
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities	1,120	(2,783)
Net (decrease) increase in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash	(5,564) 32,851	
Effect of exchange rate changes in cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash	(189) 392	

Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at beginning of period Cash, cash equivalents and restricted cash at end of period	76,320 \$70,567	43,930 \$77,173
Supplemental disclosure of cash flow activities:		
Cash paid for income taxes	\$58	\$75
Cash paid for interest expense	\$ —	\$101
Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing activities:		
Purchase of property and equipment in accounts payable and accrued expenses	\$ —	\$5
Contingent consideration related to acquisition	\$1,443	\$ —
Cash holdback related to acquisition	\$472	\$ —
Deferred tax liability related to acquisition	\$1,092	\$ —
Common stock issued for settlement of RSUs	\$3,098	\$2,935

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these unaudited condensed consolidated financial statements.

Table of Contents

Telaria, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (in thousands, except share and per share data) (unaudited)

1. Organization and Description of Business

Telaria, Inc. (the "Company"), formerly Tremor Video, Inc., provides a fully programmatic, software platform for premium publishers to analyze, manage and monetize their video advertising across internet connected devices. On September 11, 2017, the Company filed an amendment to its Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation with the Secretary of State of the State of Delaware to change the Company's name from "Tremor Video, Inc." to "Telaria, Inc." In connection with the name change, the Company's common stock began trading under a new NYSE ticker symbol, "TLRA," and the corporate website address was changed to www.telaria.com.

On August 7, 2017, the Company announced the sale of its buyer platform to an affiliate of Taptica International Ltd. ("Taptica") for total consideration of \$50,000, subject to adjustment for working capital. Refer to Note 3 in notes to consolidated financial statements. The buyer platform enabled advertisers, agencies and other buyers of advertising to discover, buy, optimize and measure the effectiveness of their video ad campaigns across all digital screens. Following the strategic decision to sell the buyer platform, the Company is focused exclusively on offering a video management platform for publishers.

On June 8, 2018, the Company acquired all of the outstanding shares of SlimCut SAS ("SlimCut"), a video technology solutions company that is focused on serving premium publishers in Canada and France, pursuant to a stock purchase agreement.

The Company is headquartered in the State of New York.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Basis of Presentation

The accompanying unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements and condensed footnotes have been prepared in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America ("U.S. GAAP") and the applicable rules and regulations of the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commissions (the "SEC") regarding unaudited interim financial information. In the opinion of management, the accompanying unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements reflect all normal recurring adjustments necessary for a fair presentation of the Company's condensed consolidated balance sheets, statements of operations, comprehensive loss, changes in stockholders equity, and cash flows for the interim periods presented in addition to the acquisition of SlimCut Media SAS, a French société par actions simplifiée incorporated under the laws of France ("SlimCut"), and restructuring cost adjustments. Operating results for the interim periods presented are not necessarily indicative of the results of operations to be expected for the full year or the results for any future periods due to seasonal and other factors, including, but not limited to, the Company's acquisition of SlimCut and the disposition of the buyer platform. Certain information and footnote disclosures normally included in the consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP have been omitted in accordance with the rules and regulations of the SEC. Accordingly, these unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements and condensed footnotes should be read in conjunction with the consolidated financial statements and accompanying notes thereto included in the Company's Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017 filed with the SEC on March 2, 2018. The Company's Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheets and Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations for the prior periods presented herein have been recast to exclude the results of its buyer platform business that was classified as discontinued operations during the third quarter of 2017. See Note 3 for additional information.

Principles of Consolidation

The unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly-owned subsidiaries. All significant inter-company balances and transactions have been eliminated in the accompanying unaudited interim condensed consolidated financial statements.

Reclassifications

Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform to the current period presentation with no impact on consolidated net income or cash flows.

Table of Contents

Telaria, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (in thousands, except share and per share data) (unaudited)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Use of Estimates

The preparation of the Company's Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements in conformity with GAAP requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts that are reported in the Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements and accompanying disclosures. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Revenue Recognition

The Company generates revenue each time a transaction occurs on its platform based on a simple and transparent fee structure established with its publisher partners and does not collect any fees directly from buyers integrated with its platform. For substantially all transactions generated through its platforms, the Company acts as an agent on behalf of publishers and revenue is recognized net of any inventory costs that it remits to publishers.

The determination of whether revenue should be reported on a gross or net basis is based on an assessment of whether we are acting as the principal or an agent in the transaction. In determining whether the Company is acting as the principal or an agent, management followed the accounting guidance for principal-agent considerations. The determination of whether the Company is acting as a principal or an agent in a transaction involves judgment and is based on an evaluation of the terms of each arrangement, none of which are considered presumptive or determinative. Substantially all of the revenue generated, and costs incurred, related to publisher transactions on our platform reported on a net basis as we determined that we act as an agent for publishers and are not the primary obligor in such transactions, given that: (1) another party is primarily responsible for fulfilling the contract and we do not have discretion in establishing prices and (2) we do not generally take on inventory risk. For certain transactions, the Company reports revenue on a gross basis, based primarily on its determination that it acts as the primary obligor in the delivery of advertising campaigns for buyers with respect to such transactions.

Stock-Based Compensation Expenses

The Company accounts for stock-based compensation expense under FASB ASC 718, "Compensation—Stock Compensation," which requires the measurement and recognition of stock-based compensation expense based on estimated fair values, for all stock-based payment awards made to employees, and FASB ASC 505-50, "Equity-Based Payments to Non-Employees," which requires the measurement and recognition of stock-based compensation expense based on the estimated fair value of services or goods being received, for all stock-based payment awards made to other service providers and non-employees.

The Company measures its stock-based payment awards based on its estimate of the fair value of such award using an option-pricing model, for stock option awards, and the fair value of the Company's common stock on the date of grant, for restricted stock unit awards. The value of the portion of the award that is ultimately expected to vest is recognized as an expense over the requisite service periods in the Company's condensed consolidated statements of operations. The Company recognizes compensation expenses for the value of its stock-based payment awards, which have graded vesting criteria based on service and market conditions, using the straight-line method, over the requisite service period of each of the awards, net of actual forfeitures.

In the event of modification of the conditions on which stock-based payment awards were granted, an additional expense is recognized for any modification that increases the total fair value of the stock-based payment arrangement; with modification defined as; (i) an event that increases the fair value of the award; (ii) changes the vesting period of the award; (iii) or changes the classification of the award from equity to liability or liability to equity, for employees, other service providers or non-employees at the date of modification.

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, stock-based compensation recorded in continuing operations is as follows:

Table of Contents

Telaria, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (in thousands, except share and per share data) (unaudited)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

	Three			
	Month	ıs	Nine M	onths
	Ended	l	Ended	
	Septer	mber	Septem	ber 30,
	30,			
	2018	2017	2018	2017
Stock-based compensation expense:				
Technology and development	\$117	\$155	\$370	\$455
Sales and marketing	352	902	1,055	1,252
General and administrative	465	477	1,344	1,323
Total stock-based compensation expense in continuing operations	\$934	\$1,534	\$2,769	\$3,030
Income Taxes				

Income Taxes

Income taxes represents amounts paid or payable (or received or receivable) for the current year and includes any changes in deferred taxes during the year. The Company recognizes deferred tax assets and liabilities for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax bases, as well as for operating loss and tax credit carry-forwards. The Company measures deferred tax assets and liabilities using enacted tax rates expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which the Company expects to recover or settle those temporary differences. The Company recognizes the effect of a change in tax rates on deferred tax assets and liabilities in the results of operations in the period that includes the enactment date. Deferred income tax expense represents the change during the period in deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities. The components of the deferred tax assets and liabilities are individually classified as non-current. The Company reduces the measurement of a deferred tax asset, if necessary, by a valuation allowance if it is more likely than not that the Company will not realize some or all of the deferred tax asset. As a result of the Company's historical operating performance and the cumulative net losses incurred to date, the Company does not have sufficient objective evidence to support the recovery of the deferred tax assets. Accordingly, the Company has established a valuation allowance against substantially all of its deferred tax assets for financial reporting purposes because the Company believes it is more likely than not that these deferred tax assets will not be realized. The Company accounts for uncertain tax positions by recognizing the financial statement effects of a tax position only when, based upon technical merits, it is "more-likely-than-not" that the position will be sustained upon examination. Potential interest and penalties associated with unrecognized tax positions are recognized in its provision for income taxes in the consolidated statements of operations.

On December 22, 2017, the U.S. President signed the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act (the "Act") into law. Effective January 1, 2018, among other changes, the Act (1) reduces the U.S. federal corporate tax rate from 35 percent to 21 percent, (2) changes the rules relating to net operating loss ("NOL") carryforwards and carrybacks, (3) eliminates the corporate alternative minimum tax ("AMT") and changes how existing AMT credits can be realized; and (4) requires companies to pay a one-time transition tax on certain unrepatriated earnings of foreign subsidiaries.

Given the significance of the legislation, the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission (the "SEC") staff issued Staff Accounting Bulletin No.118 ("SAB 118"), which allows registrants to record provisional amounts during a one-year "measurement period". During the measurement period, impacts of the law are expected to be recorded at the time a reasonable estimate for all or a portion of the effects can be made, and provisional amounts can be recognized and adjusted as information becomes available, prepared, or analyzed. As of September 30, 2018, we have not recorded incremental accounting adjustments related to the Act as we continue to consider interpretations of its application. The Tax Act did not have a material impact on our financial statements since our deferred temporary differences in the United States are fully offset by a valuation allowance and we do not have any significant off shore earnings from

which to record the mandatory transition tax. We did not record any provision for federal income taxes for the period ended September 30, 2018.

Net Income (Loss) Per Share Attributable to Common Stockholders

Basic net income (loss) per share attributable to common stockholders is computed by dividing net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding for the period.

Diluted net income (loss) per share attributable to common stockholders is computed by dividing net income (loss) attributable to common stockholders by the weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding for the period,

Table of Contents

Telaria, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (in thousands, except share and per share data)

(unaudited)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

adjusted to reflect potentially dilutive securities using the treasury stock method for warrants to purchase common stock, stock option awards and restricted stock unit awards. Due to the Company's loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes: (i) warrants to purchase common stock; (ii) stock option awards; and (iii) restricted stock unit awards were not included in the computation of diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders, as the effects would be anti-dilutive. Accordingly, basic and diluted net loss per share attributable to common stockholders is equal for the years presented.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Company considers cash deposits and all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three months or less to be cash equivalents. The fair value of the Company's cash and cash equivalents approximates their cost plus accrued interest because of the short-term nature of the instruments.

Accounts Receivable, Net

The Company extends credit to customers and generally does not require any security or collateral. Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount. The Company carries its accounts receivable balances at net realizable value. Management evaluates the collectability of its accounts receivable balances on a periodic basis and determines whether to provide an allowance or if any accounts should be written down and charged to expense as bad debt. The evaluation is based on a past history of collections, current credit conditions, the length of time the account is past due and a past history of write-downs. An accounts receivable balance is considered past due if the Company has not received payments based on agreed-upon terms.

As of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 the allowance for doubtful accounts was \$1,053 and \$359, respectively.

Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents and accounts receivable.

All of the Company's cash and cash equivalents are held at financial institutions that management believes to be of high credit quality. The Company's cash and cash equivalents may exceed federally insured limits at times. The Company has not experienced any losses on cash and cash equivalents to date.

The Company determines collectability by performing ongoing credit evaluations and monitoring its customers' accounts receivable balances. For new customers and their agents, which may be advertising agencies or other third parties, the Company performs a credit check with an independent credit agency and may check credit references to determine creditworthiness. The Company only recognizes revenue when collection is reasonably assured. During the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018, there were two publishers and one publisher, respectively, that each accounted for more than 10% of revenue during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017. At September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017 there were one and three demand-side platforms, or DSPs, respectively, that each accounted for more than 10% of outstanding accounts receivables.

Prepaid Expenses and Other Current Assets

The Company records prepaid expenses and other current assets at cost and expenses them in the period the services are provided or the goods are delivered. The Company's prepaid expenses and other current assets consist of the following:

· ·	September Decemb		
	30, 2018	31, 2017	
Prepaid expenses and other current assets	\$ 3,251	\$ 2,231	
Prepaid rent	111	127	
Deferred rental income	140	141	

Total prepaid expenses and other current assets \$ 3,502 \$ 2,499

Table of Contents

Telaria, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

(unaudited)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation. Depreciation expense on property and equipment is calculated using the straight-line method over the following estimated useful lives:

Computer hardware 3 years
Furniture and fixtures 7 years
Computer software 3 years
Office equipment 3 years

Leasehold improvements are amortized over the shorter of the remaining life of the lease or the life of the asset. The cost of additions and expenditures that extend the useful lives of existing assets, are capitalized, while repairs and maintenance costs are charged to operations as incurred.

For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, the Company recorded depreciation expense of \$317 and \$2,781 and \$892 and \$2,727, respectively. As of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, the accumulated depreciation balance is \$2,391 and \$9,110, respectively.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Company periodically reviews long-lived assets, which consists of its property and equipment and intangible assets, for impairment in accordance with Financial Accounting Standards Board ("FASB") Accounting Standards Codification ("ASC") 360, "Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-Lived Assets," whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset is impaired or the estimated useful lives are no longer appropriate. If indicators of impairment exist and the undiscounted projected cash flows associated with such assets are less than the carrying amount of the asset, an impairment loss is recorded to write the assets down to their estimated fair values. Fair value is estimated based on discounted future cash flows.

The Company did not identify any impairment losses in continuing operations related to the Company's long-lived assets during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017.

Accounts Payable and Accrued Expenses

The Company records accounts payable and accrued expenses at cost when the service is provided or when the related product is delivered. The Company's accounts payable and accrued expenses consist of the following:

	September	December
	30, 2018	31, 2017
Trade accounts payable	\$ 63,976	\$48,736
Accrued compensation, benefits and payroll taxes	3,708	4,288
Accrued cost of sales	4,865	5,576
Other payables and accrued expenses	2,849	819
Total accounts payable and accrued expenses	\$ 75,398	\$ 59,419

Deferred Rent Liability

The Company recognizes and records rent expense related to its lease agreements, which include rent holidays, rent escalation provisions and renewal options, on a straight-line basis beginning on the commencement date over the term of the lease. The term of the lease begins on the date of possession, which is generally when the Company enters the leased premises. The Company does not assume renewal option terms in its determination of the lease term unless such renewal option is reasonably expected to be exercised upon lease inception. Any lease incentives, which may be in the form of reduced rent payments, rent holidays or landlord incentives, are considered in determining the straight-line rent expense to be recorded over the lease term. Differences between straight-line rent expense and actual rent payments are recorded as a deferred rent liability

Table of Contents

Telaria, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements

(in thousands, except share and per share data)

(unaudited)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

and presented as either a current or long-term liability in the consolidated balance sheets based on the term of the respective lease agreements.

Recently Issued Accounting Pronouncements

FASB Accounting Standards Update No. 2018-15 - Intangibles—Goodwill and Other—Internal-Use Software (Subtopic 350-40)

In August 2018, Financial Accounting Standards Board, ("FASB") issued an Accounting Standards Update, ("ASU") No. 2018-15 Intangibles-Goodwill and Other-Internal-UseSoftware (Subtopic 350-40): Customer's Accounting for Implementation Costs Incurred in a Cloud Computing Arrangement That is a Service Contract. The amendments in this update align the requirements for capitalizing implementation costs incurred in a hosting arrangement that is a service contract with the requirements for capitalizing implementation costs incurred to develop or obtain internal-use software. The requirement is for public business entities to apply the guidance to annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019 with early adoption permitted, including interim periods. The Company does not believe the adoption of this amendment will have a material impact prospectively to the Company's condensed consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

FASB Accounting Standards Update No. 2018-13 - Fair Value Measurement (Topic 820)

In August 2018, FASB issued ASU No. 2018-13 Fair Value Measurements (Topic 820): Disclosure Framework-Changes to the Disclosure Requirements for Fair Value Measurement. The amendments in the update modify the disclosure requirements on fair value measurements in Topic 820, including the removal, modification and additions of certain disclosure requirements for Level 3 fair value measurements and for transfers between Level 1 and Level 2 of the fair value hierarchy. The requirement is for all entities that are required to make disclosures about recurring or nonrecurring fair value measurements to apply the guidance to annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019 with early adoption permitted for any modified or removed disclosures only. The Company does

not believe adoption of this amendment will have a material impact prospectively to the Company's condensed consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

FASB Accounting Standards Update No. 2018-07 - Improvements to Nonemployee Share-Based Payment Accounting (Topic 718)

In June 2018, FASB issued an ASU No. 2018-07 Compensation-Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Nonemployee Share-Based Payment Accounting. The amendment simplifies the accounting for equity based payments to nonemployees by expanding the scope of Topic 718 to include nonemployees. The requirement is for public business entities to apply the guidance to annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018 with early adoption permitted, including interim periods. The Company does not believe adoption of this amendment will have a material impact prospectively to the Company's condensed consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

FASB Accounting Standards Update No. 2018-02 - Income Statement - Reporting Comprehensive Income (Topic 220)

In February 2018, FASB issued an ASU No. 2018-02 Income Statement - Reporting Comprehensive Income (Topic 220): Reclassification of Certain Tax Effects from Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income. The amendments in this update allow a reclassification from accumulated other comprehensive income to retained earnings for stranded tax effects resulting from the Tax Cuts and Jobs Act. The requirement is for public business entities to apply the guidance to annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018 with early adoption permitted, including the interim periods. The Company is currently evaluating the impact the update will have on its condensed consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

Table of Contents

Telaria, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (in thousands, except share and per share data) (unaudited)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

FASB Accounting Standards Update No. 2017-09 - Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic 718) In September 2017, FASB issued an ASU No. 2017 - 09 Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Scope of Modification Accounting. This ASU clarifies and eliminates the diversity of practice as to when a Company must account for the effects of a stock modification. In accordance with the guidance, an entity should not account for the effects of a modification unless all the following criteria are met: 1. The fair value of the modified award is the same as the fair value of the original award immediately before the original award is modified. If the modification does not affect any of the inputs to the valuation technique that the entity uses to value the award, the entity is not required to estimate the value immediately before and after the modification, 2. The vesting conditions of the modified award are the same as the vesting conditions of the original award immediately before the original award is modified, and 3. The classification of the modified award as an equity instrument or a liability instrument is the same as the classification of the original award immediately before the original award is modified. The requirement is for public business entities to apply the guidance prospectively to annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017 with early adoption permitted, including in the interim periods. The Company adopted this update in the first quarter of 2018 on a prospective basis. The adoption of this update did not have a material impact on the Company's condensed consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

FASB Accounting Standards Update No. 2017-04 - Intangibles and Other (Topic 350)

In January 2017, FASB issued ASU No. 2017-04, Intangibles and Other (Topic 350): Simplifying the Test for Goodwill Impairment. The amendments in this update modify the concept of impairment from the condition that exists when the carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value to the condition that exists when the carrying amount of a reporting unit exceeds its fair value. An entity no longer will determine goodwill impairment by calculating the implied fair value of goodwill by assigning the fair value of a reporting unit to all of its assets and liabilities as if that reporting unit had been acquired in a business combination. Because these amendments eliminate Step 2 from the goodwill impairment test, they should reduce the cost and complexity of evaluating goodwill for impairment. The requirement is for public business entities to apply the guidance to annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Early adoption is permitted for interim or annual impairment tests after January 1, 2017. The Company adopted this ASU during the third quarter of 2018 and performed a qualitative analysis, which did not indicate the possibility of an impairment for the Company's single reporting unit. As a result the Company did not proceed to step 2 in accordance with ASU No. 2017-04.

FASB Accounting Standards Update No. 2017-01 - Business Combinations (Topic 805)

In January 2017, FASB issued ASU No. 2017-01, "Business Combinations (Topic 805): Clarifying the Definition of a Business". The amendment was issued to clarify the definition of a business with the objective of adding guidance to assist entities with evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as acquisitions (or disposals) of assets or businesses. The amendments in this ASU provide a screen to determine when a set (inputs and processes that produce an output) is not a business. The screen requires that when substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired (or disposed of) is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or a group of similar identifiable assets, the set is not a business. This screen reduces the number of transactions that need to be further evaluated. The requirement is for public business entities to apply the guidance to annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. The Company adopted this update on a prospective basis in the first quarter of 2018 with no material impact to the Company's condensed consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

FASB Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-18 - Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230)

In November 2016, FASB issued Accounting Standards Update ASU No. 2016-18, "Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Restricted Cash. This update requires that a Statement of Cash Flow explain the change during the period in the total cash, cash equivalents and amounts generally described as restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents. Therefore, amounts generally described as restricted cash should be included with cash & cash equivalents when

reconciling the beginning-of-period and end-of-period total amounts shown on the Statement of Cash Flows. Public business entities should apply the guidance retrospectively to annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017 with early adoption permitted. The Company adopted this update in the first quarter of 2018 with no impact to the Company's nine months 2018 condensed consolidated financial statements and a \$770 increase in cash used in operating activities on the Company's condensed and consolidated statements of cash flows for the nine months of 2017.

Table of Contents

Telaria, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (in thousands, except share and per share data) (unaudited)

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (Continued)

FASB Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-15 - Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments In August 2016, the FASB issued an ASU, which clarifies how entities should classify certain cash receipts and cash payments on the statement of cash flows. The new guidance also clarifies how the predominance principle should be applied when cash receipts and cash payments have aspects of more than one class of cash flows. This update is effective for public business entities for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, and interim periods within those fiscal years. The Company adopted this update in the first quarter of 2018 with no material impact to the Company's condensed consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

FASB Accounting Standards Update No. 2016-02 — Leases (Topic 842)

In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases, which clarifies and improves existing authoritative guidance related to leasing transactions. This update will require the recognition of lease assets and lease liabilities on the balance sheet and disclosing information about material leasing arrangements. This update is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2018, with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of this guidance on our financial statements and related disclosures, including the increase in the assets and liabilities on our balance sheet and the impact on our current lease portfolio from both a lessor and lessee perspective. To facilitate the implementation of this guidance, the Company has hired an outside consulting firm to assist the Company in identifying our significant leases by geography and by asset type that will be impacted by the new guidance and have identified and are currently implementing a new software platform for administering our leases and facilitating compliance with the new guidance. The Company expects to implement this guidance in the first quarter of 2019.

The Company is currently evaluating the impact that the update will have on its condensed consolidated financial statements and related disclosures.

FASB Accounting Standards Update No. 2014-09 — Revenue from Contracts with Customers
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers that provides a
comprehensive model for recognizing revenue with customers. This update clarifies and replaces all existing revenue
recognition guidance within U.S. GAAP and may be adopted retrospectively for all periods presented or adopted
using a modified retrospective approach. In August 2015, The FASB issued ASU No. 2015-14, Revenue from
Contracts with Customers, Deferral of the Effective Date, which deferred the effective date by one year to
December 15, 2017 (beginning with the Company's first quarter in 2018) and permitting early adoption of the
standard, but not before the original effective date of December 15, 2016. In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU
2016-08, Revenue from Contracts with Customers, Principal vs. Agent Consideration (Reporting Gross versus Net),
which clarifies the implementation guidance on principal versus agent considerations. The guidance includes
indicators to assist an entity in determining whether it controls a specified good or service before it is transferred to
the customers. The Company adopted the new standard in the first quarter of 2018 using the modified retrospective
approach, with no material impact to the Company's condensed consolidated financial statements and related
disclosures.

3. Disposition of Buyer Platform

On August 7, 2017, the Company announced the sale of its buyer platform to Taptica for total consideration of \$50,000, subject to adjustment for working capital. In connection with the transaction, we entered into a transition services agreement, as amended, pursuant to which we agreed to provide certain services to Taptica through June 15, 2018.

The proceeds from the sale included \$1,000 for the right to use the name, "Tremor Video, DSP," for a period of 18 months following the closing. The Company recognized the \$1,000 in other income within the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations ratably over the 18 months period.

The Company transferred full title and interest in the name "Tremor Video" to Taptica during the second quarter of 2018, in consideration for Taptica reaching certain payment milestones under a commercial agreement between the parties. As a result of the title transfer, the remaining balance of \$566 related to the transfer of the trademark was recorded in other income during the second quarter of 2018.

Table of Contents

Telaria, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (in thousands, except share and per share data) (unaudited)

3. Disposition of Buyer Platform (Continued)

In connection with the closing of the transaction, the Company recognized a gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of tax, of \$14,924 in the third quarter of 2017. Included in the measurement of the gain were estimates for the income taxes due on the gain and the additional cash consideration expected from the buyer related to a closing date net working capital sales price adjustment. The Company recognized losses on sale of discontinued operations for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 as a result of net working capital adjustments in the amount of \$(136). The loss recorded for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 partially offset the gain on sale of discontinued operations originally recognized in the third quarter of 2017.

The following table presents the major financial lines constituting the results of operations for discontinued operations to the net income from discontinued operations, net of tax, presented separately in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Operations:

	Three Months Ended September	Nine M Ended Septem	
	30, 20 28 17	2018	2017
Revenue	\$ -\$ 14,143		88,337
Cost of revenue	8,553		53,336
Gross profit	— 5,590	_	35,001
Operating expenses: Technology and development Sales and marketing	—1,215 —3,073	_	7,532 15,808
General administrative	—97		538
Depreciation and Amortization	— 527	_	3,222
Total operating expenses	-4,912		27,100
Operating income of discontinued operations before income taxes	678		7,901
Provision for income tax on discontinued operations	—35		54
Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes	\$ -\$ 643	_	7,847
Loss on sale of discontinued operations before income taxes Provision for income taxes on sale of discontinued operations Loss on sale of discontinued operations, net of income taxes	—15,222 —298 —14,924	_	15,222 298 14,924

Total income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes \$-\$15,567 \$(136) \$22,771 The following table presents supplemental cash flow information of the discontinued operations:

Nine Months Ended September 30, 20 2817

Non-cash adjustments to net cash from operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization \$-\\$3,222

Stock based compensation expense	\$ -\$ 671
Goodwill write-off	4,609
Cook wood in investing activities.	

Cash used in investing activities:

Capital expenditures \$-\$413

Table of Contents

Telaria, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (in thousands, except share and per share data)

4. Acquisitions

On June 8, 2018, the Company acquired all of the outstanding shares of SlimCut, a video technology solutions company that is focused on serving premium publishers in Canada and France, pursuant to a stock purchase agreement between the Company and the sellers identified therein. As consideration for the acquisition, the Company made an initial payment to the sellers of \$5,458, subject to certain adjustments set forth in the purchase agreement. In addition, the sellers are eligible to receive future cash payments up to \$1,500 based on achieving certain financial milestones of SlimCut during fiscal year 2018.

The fair value of the contingent consideration as of June 8, 2018 was \$1,443 (see Note 5 below) and is included in the purchase price of SlimCut. The Company re-measured the estimated fair value of the contingent consideration as of June 30, 2018 and September 30, 2018, with no material change in fair value as of either date. As a result, no mark-to market expense is recorded for the three and nine months period ended September 30, 2018.

The results of operations of SlimCut have been included in the Company's condensed consolidated statements of operations since the acquisition. The financial effects of this acquisition, individually and in the aggregate, were not material to the Company's consolidated condensed balance sheet and statement of operations as of and for the three and nine month period ended September 30, 2018 and, therefore, proforma results are not presented. On August 3, 2015, the Company acquired all of the outstanding shares of The Video Network Pty, Ltd, an Australian limited liability company, ("TVN"). As consideration for the acquisition, the Company made an initial payment to the TVN Sellers of \$3,040 Australian dollars (\$2,217 U.S. dollars based on the currency exchange rate on the date of the acquisition). In addition, the former stockholders of TVN ("TVN Sellers") were eligible to receive cash payments over a term of two years contingent on the operating performance of TVN in reaching certain financial milestones in each of the periods from July 1, 2015 to June 30, 2016 and the period from July 1, 2016 to June 30, 2017, a portion of which was also contingent on continued employment of certain TVN Sellers (the "TVN Employee Sellers"). Subsequent to the date of acquisition, the Company re-measured the estimated fair value of the contingent consideration at each reporting date with any changes in fair value recorded in the Company's statements of operations. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017, the Company recorded \$0 and \$148, respectively, in mark-to market expense related to the change in contingent consideration for TVN Sellers that were not required to remain employed with the Company and \$0 and \$1,810, respectively, of compensation related expense in connection with the continued employment of the TVN Employee Sellers. Compensation related expense in connection with the continued employment of the TVN Employee Sellers is recorded in sales and marketing expense in the condensed consolidated statement of operations. As of December 31, 2017, all contingent consideration related to the purchase of TVN had been paid.

5. Fair Value Measurements

Fair value is defined as the exchange price that would be received for an asset or paid to transfer a liability (an exit price) in the principal or most advantageous market for the asset or liability in an orderly transaction between market participants on the measurement date. The Company uses a three-tier fair value hierarchy to classify and disclose all assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis, as well as assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis, in periods subsequent to their initial measurement. The hierarchy requires the Company to use observable inputs when available, and to minimize the use of unobservable inputs when determining fair value. If a financial instrument uses inputs that fall in different levels of the hierarchy, the instrument will be categorized based upon the lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value calculation. The three-tiers are defined as follows:

Level 1. Observable inputs based on unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

Level 2. Inputs, other than quoted prices in active markets, that are observable either directly or indirectly; and

Level 3. Unobservable inputs for which there is little or no market data requiring the Company to develop its own assumptions.

Table of Contents

Telaria, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (in thousands, except share and per share data) (unaudited)

5. Fair Value Measurements (Continued)

Assets and Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

	September 30, 2018				December 31, 2017			
	Level 1 Level 2Level 3 Total			Level 1 Level 2Level 3To			l 3Total	
Assets:								
Money market funds(1)	\$46,456	\$ -	-\$	\$46,456	\$53,853	\$ -	-\$	-\$ 53,853
Total assets	\$46,456	\$ -	-\$	\$46,456	\$53,853	\$ -	-\$	-\$ 53,853
Liabilities:								
Contingent consideration on acquisition liability(2)	\$	\$ -	\$1,443	\$1,443	\$ —	\$ -	-\$	-\$
Total liabilities	\$ —	\$ -	\$1,443	\$1,443	\$ —	\$ -	-\$	_\$

Money market funds are included within cash and cash equivalents in the Company's consolidated balance sheets.

- (1) As short-term, highly liquid investments readily convertible to known amounts of cash, the Company's money market funds have carrying values that approximates its fair value. Amounts above do not include \$24,111 and \$22,467 of operating cash balances as of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.

 On June 8, 2018, the Company acquired all of the outstanding shares of SlimCut. In connection with the acquisition, the former stockholders of SlimCut are eligible to receive future cash payments contingent on the operating performance of SlimCut in reaching certain financial milestones. In estimating the fair value of the contingent consideration on the date of acquisition, the Company used a Monte-Carlo valuation model based on
- (2) business plans, anticipated future cash flows, and marketplace data), and the weighted-probabilities of possible payments. These assumptions were based on significant inputs not observed in the market and, therefore, represent a Level 3 measurement. Based on the financial forecasts at September 30, 2018, no changes were recorded for the contingent liability. Any changes in the unobservable inputs could significantly impact the estimated fair value of the contingent consideration.

Liabilities Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis Using Significant Unobservable Inputs (Level 3)

2018

Beginning Balance at January 1, 2018 \$—
Contingent consideration (SlimCut Acquisition) 1,443
Mark-to-market(1) —
Balance as of September 30, 2018 \$1,443

As of September 30, 2018, there is no mark-to-market expense incurred based on the Company's forecast of the estimated fair value of the contingent consideration relating to the acquisition of SlimCut. Amounts recorded as (1) mark-to-market expense relating to Level 3 instruments are recorded in operating expense. Refer to the table

above regarding assumptions used for Level 3 instruments, and note 4 for further discussion of contingent consideration payments owed in connection with the Company's acquisition of SlimCut.

6. Goodwill and Intangible Assets, Net

Goodwill includes the cost of the acquired business in excess of the fair value of the tangible net assets recorded in connection with the acquisitions of SlimCut and TVN (see Note 4 – Acquisitions). Accounting Standards Codification 350, "Intangibles – Goodwill and Other" ("ASC 350"), requires the Company to assess goodwill for impairment annually or more frequently if a triggering event occurs. The Company operates as one operating and reporting segment and, therefore, the Company assesses goodwill for impairment annually as one singular reporting unit. The Company's policy is to first perform a qualitative assessment to determine if that it was more likely or not if the reporting unit's

carrying value is less than the fair value, indicating the potential for goodwill impairment. If the reporting unit fails the qualitative test then the Company proceeds with the quantitative two step goodwill impairment calculation. During the third quarter of 2018, the Company performed a

Table of Contents

Telaria, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (in thousands, except share and per share data) (unaudited)

6. Goodwill and Intangible Assets, Net (Continued)

qualitative assessment of the reporting unit's fair value which included assessing the impact of certain factors such as general economic conditions, limitations on accessing capital, changes in forecasted operating results, and fluctuations in foreign exchange rates. Based on our qualitative assessment, we concluded that it was more-likely-than-not that the estimated fair value of Telaria Inc.'s reporting unit exceeded its carrying value and thus, we did not proceed to the two-step goodwill impairment test.

The Company did not identify any impairment of its goodwill as of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, and therefore, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 and for the year-ended December 31, 2017, no impairment losses related to goodwill were recorded.

The changes in the carrying amount of goodwill as of September 30, 2018 are as follows:

September 30, 2018

Beginning balance as of January 1, 2018 \$ 6,320 Acquisition-related goodwill 3,424 Foreign exchange impact (125) Ending Balance as of September 30, 2018 \$ 9,619

The Company also reviews certain identifiable intangible assets for impairment whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of intangible assets are measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of the asset or asset group, using an income approach, to future undiscounted net cash flows expected to be generated by the asset or asset group. If such assets are not recoverable, the impairment to be recognized, if any, is measured by the amount which the carrying amount of the assets exceeds the estimated fair value of the assets or asset group. As the Company operates as one business unit and our long-lived assets do not have identifiable cash flows that are independent of the other assets and liabilities of this business unit, the impairment testing on intangible assets is performed at the entity-level.

The Company did not identify any impairment of intangible assets as of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, and therefore, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 and for the year-ended December 31, 2017, no impairment losses related to intangible assets were recorded.

Intangible assets that are not considered to have an indefinite useful life are amortized over their estimated useful lives on a straight-line method as follows:

Customer relationships 5 - 10 years

Technology 5 years

Information regarding the Company's acquisition-related intangible assets, net is as follows:

	September 30, 2018			
	Gross Accumulated		Net	
	Carrying Amortization Amount			Carrying Amount
				Amount
Customer relationships(1)	\$4,886	\$ (1,157)	\$ 3,729
Technology(2)	987	(62)	925
Total acquisition-related intangible assets, net	\$5,873	\$ (1,219)	\$ 4,654

Table of Contents

Telaria, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (in thousands, except share and per share data) (unaudited)

6. Goodwill and Intangible Assets, Net (Continued)

December 31, 2017

Gross
Accumulated
Carrying
Amortization
Amount

Net
Carrying
Amount
Amount

Customer relationships(1) \$2,188 \$ (881) \$1,307

(1) The increase in gross carrying amount for customer relationships from December 31, 2017 to September 30, 2018, is primarily due to an increase of \$2,900 relating to the acquisition of SlimCut, which was partially offset by a decrease of \$202 from the foreign exchange impact for the same period. From December 31, 2017 to September 30, 2018, amortization expense increased by \$354, offset by foreign exchange impact over the same period of \$78.

(2) At December 31, 2017, the Company did not record any carrying amounts for technology acquisition-related intangible assets. The gross carrying amount for technology includes an increase of \$1,000 due to the acquisition of SlimCut which was partially offset by foreign exchange impact of \$13 for the nine months ended September 30, 2018.

Amortization expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 is \$206 and \$417, respectively. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017 amortization expense was \$92 and \$268, respectively.

The estimated future amortization expense for intangibles subject to amortization for the next five years and thereafter is as follows:

2018 (three months remaining)	205
2019	821
2020	821
2021	680
2022	484
2023 and thereafter	1,643

7. Changes in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

The following tables provide the components of accumulated other comprehensive loss income:

Accumulated amortization increased by \$62 over the same period due to the acquisition of SlimCut.

Three Months Ended September 30,	Nine Months Ended September 30,			
2018 2017	2018 2017			
Foreign Foreign	Foreign Foreign			
Currenc@urrency	Currenc Currency			
Translationanslation	Translationanslation			
Adjustm And justment	Adjustm And justment			
\$(504) \$ (204)	\$(232) \$ (331)			
(145) (42)	(417) 85			
\$(649) \$ (246)	\$(649) \$ (246)			
	Ended September 30, 2018 2017 Foreign Foreign Currency Translatificanslation Adjustment \$(504) \$ (204) (145) (42)			

(1) For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 and 2017, there were no reclassifications to or from accumulated other comprehensive (loss) income.

Telaria, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (in thousands, except share and per share data) (unaudited)

8. Net Loss Per Share of Common Stock

	Septemb	er 30, 2017	September 2018	30, 2017
Numerator:				
Loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes	\$(1,581)	\$ (3,273)	\$(10,665)	\$(19,637)
Total (loss) income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes		15,567	(136)	22,771
Net income (loss)	\$(1,581)	\$ 12,294	\$(10,801)	\$3,134

Denominator:

Weighted-average number of shares of common stock outstanding for basic and diluted net loss per share

52,716,62**6**0,642,344 52,265,22850,280,849

Three Months Ended Nine Months Ended

Basic and diluted net income (loss) per share:

Net loss from continuing operations	\$(0.03) \$ (0.06) \$(0.21) \$(0.39)
Net income from discontinued operations	_	0.30	_	0.45	
Net income (loss)	\$(0.03) \$ 0.24	\$(0.21) \$0.06	

The following securities were outstanding during the periods presented below and have been excluded from the calculation of diluted net loss from continuing operations per share, net loss per share and net income (loss) from discontinued operations per share of common stock because the effect is anti-dilutive:

	Three Mor	nths Ended	Nine Months Ended			
	September	: 30,	September 30,			
	2018	2017	2018	2017		
Stock option awards	2,347,045	6,552,087	2,347,045	6,552,087		
Restricted stock unit awards	6,554,864	2,975,616	6,554,864	2,975,616		
Total anti-dilutive securities	8,901,909	9,527,703	8,901,909	9,527,703		

9. Restructuring Costs

The Company divested its buyer platform on August 7, 2017. See Note 3, Disposition of Buyer Platform for more information regarding the sale of the buyer platform. As a result of the divestiture and corresponding reduction in number of employees, the Company relocated its corporate headquarters in New York as well as its office in Santa Monica, California. The Company ceased using its former corporate headquarters and Santa Monica location as of May 31, 2018. The leases associated with these offices will expire on January 31, 2025 and June 30, 2020, respectively.

As a result of the Company's Santa Monica relocation, the Company incurred one-time costs of \$117 for the three months ending June 30, 2018. As a result of a change in term used in calculating the one-time costs, an additional \$32 was recorded for the three months ended September 30, 2018. The company recorded the costs of \$32 and \$149 as restructuring costs in the Company's condensed consolidated statements of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018, respectively.

Table of Contents

Telaria, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (in thousands, except share and per share data) (unaudited)

9. Restructuring Costs (Continued)

The following table sets forth details regarding the activities described above during the nine months ended September 30, 2018.

	Balance as of January 1, 2018	Expenses, net	Cash	Non-	-Cash	of Sep	ance as etember 2018
Restructuring liability	\$ -	-\$ 149	\$(73)	\$	7	\$	83

10. Commitments and Contingencies

Operating Commitments

The Company leases office space under non-cancellable operating lease agreements that expire at various dates and is party to contracts for other services under various non-cancellable agreements that expire in 2019. Effective December 2017, the Company entered into a lease for its current headquarters at 222 Broadway, New York, New York. The commencement date for the sublease was January 2018 and it expires in July 2029. In June 2018, the Company entered into an agreement to sublease its former headquarters at 1501 Broadway, New York, NY, with a commencement date of August 1, 2018 and an expiration date of January 31, 2025.

As of September 30, 2018, future minimum payment commitments required under the Company's non-cancellable office space leases, including the lease for its current corporate headquarters (which the Company relocated to during the second quarter of 2018 at 222 Broadway, New York, NY), and its former corporate headquarters (which the Company currently subleases), co-location agreements and third-party licenses, net of aggregate future sublease income, for the next five years and thereafter are as follows:

Remaining 2018	\$1,639
2019	6,438
2020	6,486
2021	5,399
2022	4,922
Thereafter	18,127
Total minimum operating commitments	43,011
Less non-cancellable sublease income	(22,515)
Total operating commitments	\$20,496

Total rent expense recorded within operating income in the condensed consolidated statements of operations for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 is \$648 and \$2,819 respectively. Rent expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017 is \$760 and \$2,268, respectively. In addition, the Company recorded sublease

expense for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 of \$1,020 and \$2,059, respectively, and \$448 and \$1,298 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017, respectively, and sublease income for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 of \$881 and \$1,976, respectively, and \$538 and \$1,494 for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017, respectively. Sublease income and expense is recorded within other income (expense), net in the condensed consolidated statements of operations.

Table of Contents

Telaria, Inc.

Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (in thousands, except share and per share data) (unaudited)

10. Commitments and Contingencies (Continued)

Letters of Credit

At September 30, 2018, the Company had the following outstanding letters of credit: \$450 related to its former headquarters at 52 W 23rd St, New York, New York \$320 related to its office space in Mountain View, California \$2,332 related to its former headquarters at 1501 Broadway, New York, New York \$633 related to its current headquarters at 222 Broadway, New York, New York

Legal Contingencies

The Company is occasionally involved with various claims and litigation during the normal course of business. Reserves are established in connection with such matters when a loss is probable and the amount of such loss can be reasonably estimated. As of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, no reserves were recorded. The determination of probability and the estimation of the actual amount of any such loss are inherently unpredictable, and it is therefore possible that the eventual outcome of such claims and litigation could exceed the estimated reserves, if any. Based upon the Company's experience, current information and applicable law, it generally does not believe it is reasonably probable that any proceedings or possible related claims will have a material effect on its financial statements. Regardless of the outcome, litigation can have an adverse impact on the Company because of defense and settlement costs, diversion of management resources and other factors.

11. Subsequent Events

In October 2018, the Company's Board of Directors approved a share repurchase plan, under which the Company is authorized to purchase up to \$20,000 of common stock over an eighteen-month period beginning October 2, 2018. The repurchases may be made, from time to time, in the open market or by privately negotiated transactions, and are expected to be funded from cash on hand. The share repurchase program may be suspended, modified or discontinued at any time.

Item 2. Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition, results of operations and cash flows should be read in conjunction with (1) the unaudited interim consolidated financial statements and the related notes thereto included elsewhere in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q, and (2) the audited consolidated financial statements and notes thereto and management's discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2017 included in the Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 2, 2018. This Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q contains "forward-looking statements" within the meaning of Section 27A of the Securities Act and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act. These statements are often identified by the use of words such as "anticipate," "believe," "continue," "could," "estimate," "expect," "intend," "may," "plan," "project," "will," "would" or the negative or plural of these words or similar expressions or variations Such forward-looking statements are subject to a number of risks, uncertainties, assumptions and other factors that could cause actual results and the timing of certain events to differ materially from future results expressed or implied by the forward-looking statements. Factors that could cause or contribute to such differences include, but are not limited to, those identified herein, and those discussed in the section titled "Risk Factors", set forth in Part II, Item 1A of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-O and in our other SEC filings, including our Annual Report on Form 10-K filed with the SEC on March 2, 2018. You should not rely upon forward-looking statements as predictions of future events. Furthermore, such forward-looking statements speak only as of the date of this report. Except as required by law, we undertake no obligation to update any forward-looking statements to reflect events or circumstances after the date of such statements. We will disclose material non-public information through one or more of the following channels: our investor relations website (http://investor.telaria.com), the social media channels identified on our investor relations website, press releases, SEC filings, public conference calls and webcasts.

Overview

Telaria, Inc. provides a fully programmatic software platform for premium publishers to analyze, manage and monetize their video advertising. Our platform is built specifically for digital video and to support the unique requirements of connected TV, mobile and over-the-top content. We provide publishers with real-time analytics and decisioning tools to optimize their video advertising business, and offer a holistic video monetization solution that allows publishers to efficiently sell their inventory however they want to transact.

Our technology enables publishers to manage and deliver their directly sold and programmatic video inventory through a single platform, allowing them to get a complete picture of their sales efforts and gain important insights into the value of their video inventory across channels. Our platform is integrated with leading third-party demand-side platforms, or DSPs, through server-to-server integrations, which enable publishers to programmatically connect with buyers through private marketplaces or open auctions with significantly reduced latency and response time. In addition, publishers manage their directly sold video inventory through our Advanced TV ad server, which was built specifically to meet the unique requirements of CTV.

We provide a full suite of tools for publishers to control their video inventory and protect the integrity of their brand. Our brand safety controls provide publishers with essential tools to ensure that the delivery of an ad campaign does not interfere with the consumer viewing experience, including ad creative review tools, the ability to filter out repetitive ads, and ad-pod features that allow for the serving of multiple ads at once in a manner analogous to commercial breaks in traditional linear television.

Our platform provides publishers with up-to-the-second reporting through a live dashboard and reporting suite, which allows them to effectively monitor buying patterns and make real-time changes to take advantage of market dynamics, as well as extensive analytics that leverage billions of historical data points to drive long term monetization strategy. In addition, clients utilize our inventory intelligence dashboard to access first and third-party data that provides valuable insights into their inventory such as performance, viewability and audience data. This data can then be used by publishers to segment their inventory and create incremental value. We also offer real-time diagnostic capabilities and full transactional transparency to our publisher partners so that they have a complete picture of how their inventory is represented in the marketplace and can immediately identify and act to resolve any issues impacting revenue generation.

We have built long-standing relationships with premium video publishers, and we believe the scale and quality of our client base makes us an important partner to video ad buyers. Buyers on our platform include some of the largest brand advertisers in the world and our platform is integrated with the leading video volume buyers in digital advertising. We generate revenue each time a transaction occurs on our platform based on a simple and transparent fee structure established with our publisher partners and do not collect any fees directly from DSPs integrated with our platform.

We provide our platform internationally in Europe, Canada, Latin America, and the Asia Pacific regions. During the second quarter of 2018, we further expanded our international presence through the acquisition of SlimCut Media SAS ("SlimCut"), a

global video technology solutions company that is focused on serving premium publishers in Canada and France. Refer to Note 4 - Acquisition, in the notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements. Historically, we operated a buyer platform business in addition to offering our video management platform for publishers. We recently made the strategic decision to focus our business exclusively on offering our video management platform for publishers, and on August 7, 2017, we announced that we had completed the sale of the assets and liabilities primarily related to our buyer platform to an affiliate of Taptica International Ltd., or Taptica, for total consideration of \$50 million, subject to adjustment for working capital. As a result of the sale, we no longer provide a buyer platform solution. Accordingly, the results of operations for the buyer platform are reflected as discontinued operations in our financial statements for all periods presented herein.

In September 2017, we changed our name from "Tremor Video, Inc." to "Telaria, Inc." In connection with the name change, our NYSE ticker symbol was changed to "TLRA" and our corporate website address was changed to www.telaria.com.

For the quarter ended September 30, 2018, our revenue from continuing operations increased to \$13.5 million, compared to \$12.7 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2017, an increase of 6.0%. Over the same period, our gross margin decreased to 86.1% for the quarter ended September 30, 2018, compared to 94.0% for the quarter ended September 30, 2017. Our loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes decreased from a loss of \$3.3 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2017 to a loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes of \$1.6 million for the quarter ended September 30, 2018, and our Adjusted EBITDA (refer to "Key Metrics-Adjusted EBITDA") decreased from a gain of \$0.4 million to a gain of \$0.0 million for the same respective periods.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2018, our revenue from continuing operations increased to \$35.5 million compared to \$28.8 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2017, an increase of 23.3%. Over the same period, our gross margin decreased to 88.6% for the nine months ended September 30, 2018, compared to 91.5% for the nine months ended September 30, 2017. Our loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes decreased from a loss of \$19.6 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2017 to a loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes of \$10.7 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2018 and our Adjusted EBITDA (refer to "Key Metrics-Adjusted EBITDA") increased from a loss of \$9.6 million to a loss of \$4.4 million for the same respective periods.

Key Metrics

We monitor the key metrics set forth in the table below to help us evaluate growth trends, establish budgets, measure the effectiveness of our sales and marketing efforts and assess our operational efficiencies. Revenue, gross margin and net loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes are discussed under the headings "Components of our Results of Operations." Adjusted EBITDA is discussed immediately following the table below.

	Three M	Ion	ths Ende	ed	Nine Months Ended			
	September 30,				September 30,			
	2018 2017				2018		2017	
	(dollars in thousands)							
	(unaudit)						
Revenue	\$13,478	3	\$12,715	5	\$35,509		\$28,788	
Gross margin	86.1	%	94.0	%	88.6	%	91.5	%
Loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes	(1,581)	(3,273))	\$(10,665)	\$(19,637)
Adjusted EBITDA	\$39		\$416		\$(4,361)	\$(9,559)

Adjusted EBITDA

Adjusted EBITDA represents our loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes, before depreciation and amortization expense, total interest and other expense (income), net, provision (benefit) for income taxes, and as

adjusted to eliminate the impact of non-cash stock-based compensation expense, acquisition-related costs, restructuring costs, mark-to-market expense, executive severance, retention and recruiting costs, disposition-related costs, expenses for transitional services, and other adjustments. Adjusted EBITDA is a key measure used by management to evaluate operating performance, generate future operating plans and make strategic decisions regarding the allocation of capital. In particular, the exclusion of certain expenses we do not consider to be indicative of our core operating performance in calculating adjusted EBITDA facilitates operating performance comparisons on a period-to-period basis.

Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP financial measure. Our use of adjusted EBITDA has limitations as an analytical tool, and you should not consider it in isolation or as a substitute for analysis of our financial results as reported under U.S. GAAP. Some of these limitations are: (a) although depreciation and amortization expense are non-cash charges, the assets being depreciated and amortized may have to be replaced in the future, and adjusted EBITDA does not reflect cash and capital expenditure requirements for such replacements or for new capital expenditure requirements; (b) Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect changes in, or cash requirements for, our working capital needs; (c) Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect tax payments that may represent a reduction in cash available to us; (d) Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect the potentially dilutive impact of equity-based compensation; (e) Adjusted EBITDA does not reflect acquisition-related costs, restructuring costs, executive severance, retention and recruiting costs, disposition-related costs, expenses for transitional services and other adjustments that may represent a reduction in cash available to us; and (f) other companies, including companies in our industry, may calculate Adjusted EBITDA or similarly titled measures differently, which reduces its usefulness as a comparative measure. Because of these and other limitations, you should consider Adjusted EBITDA alongside our other U.S. GAAP-based financial performance measures, net loss and our other U.S. GAAP financial results.

The following table presents a reconciliation of adjusted EBITDA to loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes, the most directly comparable U.S. GAAP measure, for each of the periods indicated.

taxes, the most directly comparable U.S. GAAP measure, for each of the periods indicated.										
2018	2017	2018	2017							
(dollars in	n thousand	nds)								
(unaudite	d)									
\$(1,581)	\$(3,273)	\$(10,665)	\$(19,637)							
523	984	3,198	2,995							
(45)	(651)	(1,843)	(546)							
103	(29)	146	56							
934	1,534	2,769	3,030							
73		402	1,810							
32		149	_							
_		_	148							
	887	223	1,219							
	600	_	900							
	364	697	364							
		563	102							
1,620	3,689	6,304	10,078							
\$39	\$416	\$(4,361)	\$(9,559)							
	Three Mo Ended Set 30, 2018 (dollars in (unaudite \$(1,581)) 523 (45) 103 934 73 32 — — — — — — — — — — 1,620	Three Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017 (dollars in thousand (unaudited) \$(1,581) \$(3,273) 523 984 (45) (651) 103 (29) 934 1,534 73 — 32 — — 887 — 600 — 364 — 1,620 3,689	Three Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017 2018 (dollars in thousands) (unaudited) \$(1,581) \$(3,273) \$(10,665) 523 984 3,198 (45) (651) (1,843) 103 (29) 146 934 1,534 2,769 73 — 402 32 — 149 — — 887 223 — 600 — — 887 223 — 600 — — 364 697 — 563 1,620 3,689 6,304							

- (1) Reflects sublease income for our former office locations net of rent expense for those same locations. In addition, includes income received from the transfer of rights in the name "Tremor Video".
 - For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018, reflects acquisition-related costs incurred in connection with our acquisition of SlimCut. For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017, reflects
- (2) acquisition-related costs incurred in connection with the acquisition of TVN. Refer to Note 4 Acquisition, in the notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements.
- (3) Reflects the estimated fair value of costs related to the relocation of office space. Refer to Note 9 Restructuring costs in the notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements.
- (4) Reflects expense incurred based on the re-measurement, at September 30, 2017, of the estimated fair value of earn-out payments that were paid in connection with the acquisition of TVN and which were not conditioned on

continued employment. Refer to Note 4 - Acquisition in the notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements.

Reflects professional fees incurred in connection with the sale of the buyer platform in August 2017. Refer to Note (5)3 - Disposition of Buyer Platform in the notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements of this Form 10-O.

- (6) Reflects costs incurred providing transitional services following the sale of our buyer platform. For the nine months ended September 30, 2018, reflects rent expense for our current corporate headquarters during
- (7) the period of time in which such space was unoccupied. For the nine months ended September 30, 2017, reflects amounts accrued in connection with a one-time change in our employee vacation policy.

Components of Operating Results

We operate in one segment, online video advertising services. The key elements of our operating results include: Revenue

We generate revenue each time a transaction occurs on our platform based on a simple and transparent fee structure established with our publisher partners and do not collect any fees directly from buyers. For substantially all transactions generated through our platforms, we act as an agent on behalf of publishers and revenue is recognized net of any inventory costs that it remits to publishers. For certain transactions, we report revenue on a gross basis, based primarily on our determination that we are acting as a primary obligor for the buyer with respect to such transactions. Refer to Note 2 - Summary of Significant Accounting Policies-Revenue Recognition, in the notes to the condensed consolidated financial statements.

Cost of Revenue, Gross Profit and Gross Margin

Our cost of revenue primarily consists of third party hosting fees, licensing fees for third party data and, with respect to any transactions that we record on a gross basis, cost of inventory. Costs owed to publishers but not yet paid are recorded in our consolidated balance sheets and included as part of accounts payable and accrued expenses. Gross margin is our gross profit expressed as a percentage of our total revenue.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses consist of technology and development, sales and marketing, general and administrative, restructuring costs, depreciation and amortization and mark-to-market expenses. Salaries, incentive compensation, stock-based compensation and other personnel-related costs are the most significant components of each of technology and development, sales and marketing and general and administrative expenses. We include stock-based compensation expense in connection with the grant of stock option awards or restricted stock unit awards in the applicable operating expense category based on the respective equity award recipient's function. We expect our operating expenses to continue to increase in future periods, to support our continued growth.

Technology and Development Expense. Technology and development expense primarily consists of salaries, incentive compensation, stock-based compensation and other personnel-related costs for product development and engineering personnel. Additional expenses in this category include travel and other related overhead. Due to the rapid development and changes in our business, we have expensed all technology and development expenses in the same period that the costs were incurred. We intend to continue to invest in our technology and development efforts. We believe continuing to invest in technology and development efforts is essential to maintaining our competitive position.

Sales and Marketing Expense. Sales and marketing expense primarily consists of salaries, incentive compensation, stock-based compensation and other personnel-related costs for our marketing and sales and sales support employees. Additional expenses in this category include marketing programs, travel and other related overhead. We expect our sales and marketing expense to increase in the foreseeable future to support our continued revenue growth. General and Administrative Expense. General and administrative expense primarily consists of salaries, incentive compensation, stock-based compensation and other personnel-related costs for business operations, administration, finance and accounting, legal, information systems and human resources employees. Additional expenses in this category include legal, accounting, investor relations and other professional fees, insurance, public company expenses, including costs associated with becoming compliant with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act, travel and other related overhead. We expect our general and administrative expenses to increase in absolute dollars in future periods as a result of incurring additional expenses becoming compliant with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act.

Restructuring Costs. Restructuring costs primarily consist of costs associated with the relocation of office space as a result of the sale of our buyer platform in August of 2017 (refer to notes 9 and 3 in notes to condensed consolidated financial statements).

Depreciation and Amortization Expense. Depreciation and amortization expense primarily consists of our depreciation expense related to investments in property, equipment and software as well as the amortization of certain intangible assets.

Mark-to-Market Expense. Mark-to-market expense consists primarily of expense related to contingent consideration incurred in connection with our acquisition of TVN in August 2015 (refer to note 4 in notes to condensed consolidated financial statements).

Interest and Other Income (Expense), Net

Interest and other income (expense), net consist primarily of interest income, interest expense, sublease income and sublease expense and foreign exchange transaction gains and losses. Interest income is derived from interest received on our cash and cash equivalents. Interest expense is primarily attributable to interest paid on taxes and fees to local jurisdictions. Sublease income and expense is attributable to subleases on our former corporate headquarters. As of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, we did not have any outstanding borrowings under our credit facility. Provision for Income Taxes

Provision (benefit) for income taxes consists of minimum U.S. state and local taxes, income taxes in foreign jurisdictions in which we conduct business.

Results of Operations

The following table is a summary of our consolidated statements of operations data for each of the periods indicated. The results of operations of our buyer platform are included in "Income from discontinued operations, net of income taxes."

Table of Contents

	Three Mo	Three Months Ended Sentember 30					Nine Months Ended September 30,					
	2018			2017			2018			2017		
	Amount	Percent of Reve		Amount	Percer of Rev			Percer of Rev		AIIIOIIIII	Percer of Rev	_
	(dollars in	n thousai	nds)								
Consolidated Statements of O	perations											
Data:												
Revenue	\$13,478	100	%	\$12,715	100.0	%	\$35,509	100.0	%	\$28,788	100.0	%
Cost of revenue	1,868	13.9		764	6.0		4,032	11.4		2,445	8.5	
Gross profit	11,610	86.1		11,951	94.0		31,477	88.6		26,343	91.5	
Operating expenses:												
Technology and development	2,432	18.0		2,116	16.6		7,044	19.8		6,650	23.1	
Sales and marketing	5,840	43.3		7,461	58.7		18,778	52.9		21,687	75.3	
General and administrative	4,306	32.0		5,343	42.0		14,670	41.3		14,990	52.1	
Restructuring costs	32	0.2		_			149	0.4		_		
Depreciation and amortization	n523	3.9		984	7.7		3,198	9.0		2,995	10.4	
Mark-to-market							_	—		148	0.5	
Total operating expenses	13,133	97.4		15,904	125.1		43,839	123.5		46,470	161.4	%
Loss from continuing	(1,523)	(11.3)	`	(3,953)	(31.1)	(12,362)	(34.8)	(20,127)	(69.9)
operations	(1,323)	(11.5)	,	(3,733)	(31.1	,	(12,302)	(34.0	,	(20,127)	(0).)	,
Total interest and other	45	0.3		651	5.1		1,843	5.2		546	1.9	
(expense) income, net	73	0.5		031	3.1		1,043	3.2		540	1.7	
Loss from continuing												
operations before provision	(1,478)	(11.0))	(3,302)	(26.0)	(10,519)	(29.6)	(19,581)	(68.0)
for income taxes												
Provision (benefit) for income	103	0.8		(29)	(0.2)	146	0.4		56	0.2	
taxes	103	0.0		(29)	(0.2	,	140	0.4		30	0.2	
Loss from continuing												
operations, net of income	(1,581)	(11.7))	(3,273)	(25.7))%	(10,665)	(30.0))%	(19,637)	(68.2)%
taxes												
Total income from												
discontinued operations, net	_	_		15,567	122.4		(136)	(0.4))	22,771	79.1	
of income taxes												
Net loss	\$(1,581)	(11.7))%	\$12,294	96.7	%	\$(10,801)	(30.4)%	\$3,134	10.9	%

Comparison for the Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2018 and 2017 Revenue

Three Months Ended September 30,	Change Increase/	(Decreas	se)	Nine Mo Ended Septemb		Change Increase/ (Decreas	se)
2018 2017	Amount	Percent	age	2018	2017	Amount	Percen	tage
(dollars in thousan	ids)							
Revenue \$13,478 \$12,715	\$ 763	6.0	%	\$35,509	\$28,788	\$ 6,721	23.3	%

Our revenue during the three months ended September 30, 2018 increased to \$13.5 million from \$12.7 million for the same period in 2017, an increase of 6.0%.

Our revenue during the nine months ended September 30, 2018 increased to \$35.5 million from \$28.8 million for the same period in 2017, an increase of 23.3%. The increase in our revenue over each of these periods resulted primarily from an increase in the amount of spend being transacted on CTV, OTT and mobile platforms, which was partially offset by a decrease in spend associated with desktop devices.

Cost of Revenue, Gross Profit and Gross Margin

	Three Mo Ended Sep		Change	/ (D		Nine Mor Ended	iths	Change		
	30,	L	Increase / (Decrease) S			Septembe	r 30,	Increase / (Decrease)		
	2018	2017	Amount	Percen	tage	2018	2017	Amount	Percen	tage
	(dollars in	thousan	ds)							
Cost of revenue	\$1,868	\$764	\$1,104	144.5	%	\$4,032	\$2,445	\$ 1,587	64.9	%
Gross profit	11,610	11,951	(341)	(2.9)%	31,477	26,343	5,134	19.5	%
Gross margin	86.1 %	94.0 %				88.6 %	91.5 %			

Our cost of revenue during the three months ended September 30, 2018, increased to \$1.9 million from \$0.8 million for the three months ended September 30, 2017. Our cost of revenue during the nine months ended September 30, 2018, increased to \$4.0 million from \$2.4 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2017. The increase in our cost of revenue over each of these periods primarily reflects an increase in hosting fees corresponding with additional spend being transacted through our platform, as well as an increase in cost of inventory relating to transactions that we report on a gross basis.

For the three months ended September 30, 2018, gross profit was \$11.6 million, a decrease of \$0.3 million or 2.9%, compared to the prior year period. For the nine months ended September 30, 2018, gross profit was \$31.5 million, an increase of \$5.1 million, or 19.5%, compared to the prior year period.

Our gross margin decreased to 86.1% and 88.6% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018, respectively, compared to 94.0% and 91.5% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2017, respectively. The decrease in our gross margin was driven in part by a change in the relative contribution to revenue from transactions reported on a gross basis.

Technology and Development Expense

	Three Mo Ended Se 30,		Change Increase	/ (Deci	rease	Nine Mon Ended September		Change Increase / (Decrease		
	2018 (dollars i	2017 n thousand	Amount ls)	Percei	ntage	2018	2017	Amount	Perc	entage
Technology and development expense	\$2,432	\$2,116	\$ 316	14.9	%	\$7,044	\$6,650	\$ 394	5.9	%
% of total revenue	18.0 %	16.6 %)			19.8 %	23.1 %)		

The increase in technology and development expense during the three months ended September 30, 2018, compared to the three months ended September 30, 2017, was primarily attributable to a \$0.3 million increase in salaries, incentive compensation and stock-based compensation.

The increase in technology and development expense for the nine months period ended September 30, 2018 compared to the nine months period ended September 30, 2017, was primarily attributable to a \$0.6 million increase in salaries, incentive compensation and stock-based compensation, partially offset by a \$0.2 million decrease in overhead costs.

Sales and Marketing Expense

	Three Mo Ended Se 30,		Change Increase /	(Decrease)	Nine Mont September		Change Increase / (Decrease)		
	2018 (dollars in	2017 thousand	Amount s)	Percentage	2018	2017	Amount	Percentage	
Sales and marketing expense	\$5,840	\$7,461	\$(1,621)	(21.7)%	\$18,778	\$21,687	\$(2,909)	(13.4)%	
% of total revenue	43.3 %	58.7 %			52.9 %	75.3 %			

The decrease in sales and marketing expense during the three months ended September 30, 2018, compared to the three months ended September 30, 2017, was attributable to a \$1.4 million decrease in salaries, incentive compensation, which primarily resulted from a decrease in sales commission and executive severance costs and by a \$0.2 million decrease in overhead costs.

The decrease in sales and marketing expense during the nine months period ended September 30, 2018, compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2017, was attributable to a \$2.1 million decrease in salaries, incentive compensation and stock based compensation, which primarily resulted from a decrease in sales commissions and executive severance costs, a \$0.4 million decrease in bad debt expense and a \$0.4 million decrease in overhead costs. General and Administrative Expense

	Three Mo Ended Se 30,		Change Increase /	(Decrease)	Nine Mon September		Change Increase / (Decrease)
	2018 (dollars i	2017 n thousand	Amount ls)	Percentage	e 2018	2017	Amount Percentage
General and administrative expense	\$4,306	\$5,343		(19.4)%	\$14,670	\$14,990	\$ (320) (2.1)%
% of total revenue	32.0 %	42.0 %)		41.3 %	52.1 %)

The decrease in general and administrative expense during the three months ended September 30, 2018, compared to the three months ended September 30, 2017, was primarily attributable to a \$0.8 million decrease in salaries, incentive compensation, stock-based compensation, which primarily resulted from a decrease in performance bonuses and a \$0.2 million decrease in overhead costs.

The decrease in general and administrative expense during the nine months ended September 30, 2018, compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2017, was primarily attributable to a \$0.3 million decrease in salaries, incentive compensation, stock-based compensation and other personnel-related costs.

Restructuring Costs

	Three					Nine M	onths			
	Month	S	Change	e		Ended		Change		
	Ended	June	Increas	se / (Decr	ease)	Septeml	ber	Increase	/ (Decre	ase)
	30,					30,				
	2018	2017	Amour	ntPercenta	age	2018	2017	Amount	Percent	age
	(dollar	s in th	ousands	s)						
Restructuring costs	s \$32	\$ <i>—</i>	\$ 32	100.0	%	\$149	\$ —	\$ 149	100.0	%
% of total revenue	02%	%				04 %	%			

Restructuring costs for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018 are the result of costs due to the relocation of our office space, which resulted from the sale of our buyer platform.

Depreciation and Amortization Expense

	Three Months Ended September 30,	Change Increase / (Decrease)	Nine Months Ended September 30,	Change Increase / (Decrease)	
	2018 2017 (dollars in thou	Amount Percentage	2018 2017	Amount	Percentage
Depreciation and amortization expense	\$523 \$984	\$ (461) (46.8)%	3,198 \$2,995	\$ 203	6.8 %
% of total revenue	3.9 % 7.7	%	9.0 % 10.4 %	%	

The decrease in depreciation and amortization expense for the three month period ended September 30, 2018, compared to the three month period ended September 30, 2017 was primarily attributable to certain leasehold improvements and furniture and fixtures that were being depreciated during 2017 period, which became fully depreciated in the second quarter of 2018.

The increase in depreciation and amortization expense during the nine months ended September 30, 2018 compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2017 was primarily attributable to accelerated depreciation on leasehold improvements and furniture and fixtures that were not retained in connection with our relocation of office space. Mark-to-Market Expense

	Three		Nine	
	Months	Change	Months	Change
	Ended	Change	Ended	Change
	September	Increase / (Decrease)	September	Increase / (Decrease)
	30,		30,	
	20182017	Am Dencentage	2012/017	Amount Percentage
	(dollars in	thousands)		
Mark-to-market expense	\$\$-	\$ –NM	 \$148	\$ (148) (100.0)%
% of total revenue	0.₺ —%		<i>∞</i> 0.5 %	

For the nine months ended September 30, 2017, mark-to-market expense is related to the Company's re-measurement of the estimated fair value of contingent consideration that was due in connection with the acquisition of TVN (refer to note 4 in the notes to condensed consolidated financial statements). Contingent consideration was paid in full as of September 30, 2017 and as a result, there was no mark-to-market expense during the three and nine months ended September 30, 2018.

Interest and Other Income (Expense). Net

interest and other meome (Expense); iv	Ct					
	Three Months Ended September 30,	Change Increase / (Decrease)	Nine Months Ended September 30,	Change Increase / (Decrease)		
	2018 2017 (dollars in thou	Amount Percentage		Amount	Percentage	
Total interest and other (expense) income, net	\$45 \$651	\$ (606) (93.1)%	\$1,843 \$546	\$ 1,297	237.5 %	
% of total revenue	0.3 % 5.1 %		5.2 % 1.9 %)		

The decrease in total interest and other income (expense), net during the three months ended September 30, 2018, compared to the three months ended September 30, 2017, was primarily attributable to a decrease in income of \$0.4 million related to transitional services provided following the sale of our buyer platform, a \$0.4 million increase in net sublease expense and a \$0.1 million decrease in income related to license of intellectual property, partially offset by \$0.3 million in interest income.

The increase in interest income and other income (expense), net during the nine months ended September 30, 2018, compared to the nine months ended September 30, 2017, was primarily attributable to an increase in income of \$0.3 million related to transitional services provided following the sale of our buyer platform, \$0.6 million of income related to the license of intellectual property and \$0.8 million of interest income, partially offset by a \$0.4 million increase in net sublease expense.

Provision for income taxes

	Three Months Ended September 30,		Change / (Dagrage)		Nine Months Ended September 30,		Change Increase / (Decrease)			
	2018	2017	Amoun	tPercenta	age	2018	2017	Amoun	tPercenta	ıge
	(dollars	in thousa	ands)							
Provision (benefit) for income taxes	\$103	\$(29)	\$ 132	(455.2)%	\$146	\$56	\$ 90	160.7	%
% of total revenue	0.8 %	(0.2)%				0.4 %	0.2 %			

The provision (benefit) for income taxes for the three and nine month period ended September 30, 2018 and 2017 increased as a result of an increase in taxable income in foreign subsidiaries, including as a result of the acquisition of SlimCut.

Income from Discontinued Operations

	Three Months						
	Ended	Change		Nine Mor	nths Ended	Change	
	September	Increase /	(Decrease)	Septembe	er 30,	Increase /	(Decrease)
	30, 20182017 (dollars in tho	Amount usands)	Percentage	2018	2017	Amount	Percentage
Total income (loss) from discontinued operations	\$— 15,567	\$(15,567)	(100.0)%	\$(136)	\$22,771	\$(22,907)	(100.6)%
% of total revenue	- % 122.4 %			(0.4)%	79.1 %		

In August 2017, we completed the sale of our buyer platform to Taptica. The consideration received was \$50 million, subject to adjustment for working capital (refer to Note 3 in the condensed consolidated financial statements). The results of our buyer platform have been recast as discontinued operations.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2018, total income (loss) from discontinued operations consisted of working capital adjustments relating to our sale of the buyer platform.

Liquidity and Capital Resources

Our Condensed Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Unaudited) includes cash flows from discontinued operations related to our buyer platform. Except for disclosures related to our working capital, liquidity and cash flows, or unless otherwise specified, disclosures in this management's discussion and analysis of financial condition and results of operations relate solely to our continuing operations.

Working Capital

The following table summarizes our cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts and working capital for the periods indicated:

As of September 30, 2018 2017 (dollars in thousands)
Cash and cash equivalents \$70,567 77,173
Accounts receivable, net of allowance for doubtful accounts 67,963 48,784
Working capital \$63,639 \$75,231

Our cash and cash equivalents at September 30, 2018 were held for working capital purposes. We do not enter investments for trading or speculative purposes. Our policy is to invest any cash in excess of our immediate requirements in investments designed to preserve the principal balance and provide liquidity. Accordingly, our cash and cash equivalents are invested primarily in demand deposit accounts and money market funds that are currently providing only a minimal return.

Sources of Liquidity

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Our principal sources of liquidity are our cash and cash equivalents. Cash and cash equivalents consist primarily of cash on deposit with banks and investments in money market funds. Cash and cash equivalents were \$70.6 million and \$76.3 million as of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, respectively.

Credit Facility

We are party to a loan and security agreement, which we refer to as our credit facility, with Silicon Valley Bank, which we refer to as our lender. Pursuant to the credit facility we can incur revolver borrowings up to the lesser of \$25.0 million and a borrowing base equal to 80.0% of eligible accounts receivable. Any outstanding principal amounts borrowed under the credit facility must be paid at maturity. Interest accrues at a floating rate equal to the lender's prime rate and is payable monthly. We are charged a fee of 0.35% of any unused borrowing capacity, which is payable quarterly. The credit facility also includes a letter of credit, foreign exchange and cash management facility up to the full amount of available credit. The credit facility matures in January 2020. While we had no outstanding borrowings under the credit facility as of September 30, 2018 and December 31, 2017, our lender has issued standby letters of credit in favor of the landlord of our headquarters totaling \$2.3 million, which can be drawn down from amounts available under the credit facility.

The credit facility contains customary conditions to borrowings, events of default and negative covenants, including covenants that restrict our ability to dispose of assets, merge with or acquire other entities, incur indebtedness, incur encumbrances, make distributions to holders of our capital stock, make investments or engage in transactions with our affiliates. We are also subject to a financial covenant with respect to a minimum quick ratio, tested monthly, and Adjusted EBITDA for trailing periods which vary from three to twelve months. Pursuant to an amendment to the credit facility, executed in November 2018 the Adjusted EBITDA covenant will only be tested if (i) the quick ratio falls below a certain threshold and (ii) unrestricted and unencumbered cash falls below \$25.0 million. Our obligations under the credit facility are secured by substantially all of our assets other than our intellectual property, although we have agreed not to encumber any of our intellectual property without the lender's prior written consent. Subject to certain exceptions, we are also required to maintain all of our cash and cash equivalents at accounts with the lender. We were in compliance with all covenants as of September 30, 2018 and through the date of this filing.

Operating and Capital Expenditure Requirements

We believe our existing cash balances will be sufficient to meet our anticipated cash requirements through at least the next 12 months. If our available cash balances and available borrowings under our credit facility are insufficient to satisfy our liquidity requirements, we will need to raise additional funds to support our operations, and such funding may not be available to us on acceptable terms, or at all. If we are unable to raise additional funds when needed, our operations and ability to execute our business strategy could be adversely affected. We may seek to raise additional funds through equity, equity-linked or debt financings. If we raise additional funds through the incurrence of indebtedness, such indebtedness would have rights that are senior to holders of our equity securities and could contain covenants that restrict our operations. Any additional equity financing may be dilutive to our stockholders.

Share Repurchase Program

In October 2018, our Board of Directors approved a share repurchase plan, under which we are authorized to purchase up to \$20.0 million of common stock over an eighteen-month period beginning October 2, 2018. The repurchases may be made, from time to time, in the open market or by privately negotiated transactions, and are expected to be funded from cash on hand. The share repurchase program may be suspended, modified or discontinued at any time.

Historical Cash Flows

The following table summarizes our historical cash flows for the periods indicated:

Nine Months Ended September 30, 2018 2017

(dollars in thousands)

Net cash provided by (used in):

Operating activities \$ 794 \$ (10,395) Investing activities (7,478) 46,029 Financing activities 1,120 (2,783))

Operating Activities

Net cash used in operating activities is primarily influenced by the revenue our business generates, our costs of revenue, and amounts of cash we invest in personnel and infrastructure to support our business. Net cash used in operating activities has been used to fund operations through changes in working capital, particularly in the areas of accounts receivable, accounts payable and accrued expenses, adjusted for non-cash expense items such as depreciation, amortization and stock-based compensation expenses.

During the nine months ended September 30, 2018, our net cash provided by operating activities was \$0.8 million and primarily consisted of a \$5.3 million increase in net cash resulting from changes in operating assets and liabilities and an increase of \$6.2 million in adjustments for non-cash items, partially offset by loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes of \$10.7 million, Adjustments for non-cash items consisted of \$3.2 million in depreciation and amortization expense, \$2.8 million in non-cash stock-based compensation expense and bad debt expense of \$0.2 million. The increase in cash resulting from changes in our operating assets and liabilities during the nine months ended September 30, 2018 consisted of a \$14.8 million increase in accounts payable and accrued expense, a \$0.6 million increase in deferred rent and security deposits payable and a \$0.3 million increase in other current liabilities, partially offset by a \$7.3 million increase in accounts receivable, \$1.8 million increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets, \$0.7 million decrease in deferred income and a \$0.6 million decrease in other liabilities. The components of our net loss from continuing operations are described in greater detail above under "Results of Operations."

During the nine months ended September 30, 2017, our net cash used in operating activities was \$10.4 million and consisted of a loss from continuing operations, net of income taxes of \$19.6 million, a \$10.6 million decrease in net cash resulting from changes in operating assets and liabilities and \$3.0 million decrease as a result of adjustments for non-cash items, which was partially offset by total income (loss) from discontinued operations, net of income taxes of \$22.8 million. Adjustments for non-cash items primarily consisted of gain on sale of discontinued operations, before income taxes of \$15.2 million, partially offset by \$6.2 million in depreciation and amortization expense, \$3.7 million in non-cash stock-based compensation expense, \$2.0 million in non-cash expenses related to our acquisition of TVN and \$0.4 million of bad debt expense. The decrease in cash resulting from changes in our operating assets and liabilities during the nine months ended September 30, 2017 primarily consisted of a \$8.9 million increase in accounts receivable, \$4.8 million decrease in contingent consideration on acquisition, \$2.7 million increase in prepaid expenses and other current assets and \$0.5 million decrease in deferred rent and security deposits payable, partially offset by \$5.2 million increase in accounts payable and \$0.9 million increase in deferred income.

Investing Activities

For the nine months ended September 30, 2018 our net cash used in investing activities of \$7.5 million consisted of the acquisition of SlimCut for initial cash payment of \$4.9 million and the purchase of property and equipment of \$2.6 million. For the nine months ended September 30, 2017, our net cash provided by investing activities of \$46.0 million, consisted of the sale of our buyer platform for cash proceeds of \$49.0 million, offset by \$2.0 million of expenses paid with respect to the sale of the buyer platform and the purchase of property and equipment in the amount of \$1.0 million.

Financing Activities

For the nine months ended September 30, 2018, our net cash provided by financing activities was \$1.1 million, which consisted of \$1.8 million in proceeds received from the exercise of stock option awards and \$0.5 million of proceeds received in connection with shares purchased under our ESPP, partially offset by \$1.2 million tax payments on behalf of employees related to net share settlements of restricted stock unit awards.

For the nine months ended September 30, 2017, our net cash used in financing activities was \$2.8 million, which consisted primarily of purchases of common stock pursuant to our share repurchase program of \$2.4 million, tax payments on behalf of employees related to net share settlements of restricted stock unit awards of \$1.0 million and capital lease payments of \$0.2 million, partially offset by proceeds received in connection with shares purchased under our ESPP of \$0.4 million and the exercise of stock option awards of \$0.4 million.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements

During the periods presented, we did not have any off-balance sheet arrangements, as defined in Item 303(a)(4)(ii) of SEC Regulation S-K, such as the use of unconsolidated subsidiaries, structured finance, special purpose entities or variable interest entities.

Critical Accounting Policies and Significant Judgments and Estimates

We prepare our unaudited interim consolidated financial statements in accordance with U.S. GAAP. The preparation of unaudited interim consolidated financial statements also requires us to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, revenue, costs and expenses and related disclosures. We base our estimates on historical experience and on various other assumptions that we believe to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results could differ significantly from the estimates made by our management. To the extent that there are differences between our estimates and actual results, our future financial statement presentation, financial condition, results of operations and cash flows will be affected. We believe the estimates, assumptions and judgments involved in revenue recognition and deferred revenue, stock-based compensation expense, and accounting for income taxes have the greatest potential impact on our unaudited interim consolidated financial statements, and consider these to be our critical accounting policies and estimates.

There have been no material changes to our critical accounting policies and estimates as compared to the critical accounting policies and estimates described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2017 filed with the U.S. Securities and Exchange Commission on March 2, 2018.

Item 3. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures About Market Risk

We are exposed to market risk primarily related to changes in interest rates and foreign currency exchange rates. We do not use derivative financial instruments for speculative, hedging or trading purposes, although in the future we may enter into hedging arrangements to manage the risks described below.

Interest Rate Risk

We maintain cash and a short-term investment portfolio consisting mainly of highly liquid, short-term money market funds, which we consider to be cash and cash equivalents, respectively. The primary objective of our investment activities is to preserve principal while maximizing income without significantly increasing risk. Because our cash and cash equivalents have a relatively short maturity, our portfolio's fair value is relatively insensitive to interest rate changes. These investments earn interest at variable rates and, as a result, decreases in market interest rates would generally result in decreased interest income. A 10% increase or decrease in interest rates occurring January 1, 2018 and sustained through the period ended September 30, 2018, would not have been material. We do not enter into investments for trading or speculative purposes. In future periods, we will continue to evaluate our investment policy relative to our overall objectives.

We were exposed to market risks related to fluctuations in interest rates related to our \$25.0 million credit facility where an increase in interest rates may result in higher borrowing costs. Since we currently do not have any outstanding borrowings under our credit facility, the effect of a hypothetical 10% change in interest rates would not have any impact on our interest expense.

Foreign Currency Exchange Risk

Due to our international operations, we are exposed to foreign exchange risk related to foreign denominated revenues and costs, which must be translated into U.S. dollars. Our primary exposures are related to non-U.S. dollar denominated expenses and revenue primarily in Australia, Brazil, Canada, EU, Malaysia, New Zealand, Singapore and United Kingdom, Substantially all of our advertiser contracts are currently denominated in U.S. dollars. Therefore, we have minimal foreign currency exchange risk with respect to our revenue. The effect of a 10% increase or decrease in exchange rates on foreign denominated cash, receivables and payables would not have been material for the periods presented. These exposures may change over time as our business practices evolve and if our exposure increases, adverse movements in foreign currency exchanges rates could have a material adverse impact on our financial results.

Inflation Risk

We do not believe that inflation has had a material effect on our business, financial condition or results of operations. We continue to monitor the impact of inflation in order to minimize its effects through pricing strategies, productivity improvements and cost reductions. If our costs were to become subject to significant inflationary pressures, we may not be able to fully offset such higher costs through price increases. Our inability or failure to do so could harm our business, financial condition and results of operations.

Item 4. Controls and Procedures

Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

We maintain "disclosure controls and procedures," as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act, that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and reported, within the time periods specified in the SEC's rules and forms. Disclosure controls and procedures include, without limitation, controls and procedures designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed by a company in the reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Act is accumulated and communicated to our management, including its principal executive and principal financial officers, as appropriate to allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure.

Our management, with the participation of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures as of September 30, 2018. Based on the evaluation of our disclosure controls and procedures as of September 30, 2018, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer concluded that, as of September 30, 2018, our disclosure controls and procedures were effective at a reasonable assurance level.

Changes in Internal Control over Financial Reporting

There was no change in our internal control over financial reporting identified in connection with the evaluation required by Rules 13a-15(d) and 15d-15(d) of the Exchange Act that occurred during the period covered by this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

While our management, including our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, design our disclosure controls and procedures and internal control over financial reporting to provide reasonable assurance of achieving their objectives, our management does not expect that our disclosure controls and procedures or our internal control over financial reporting will prevent all errors and all fraud. A control system, no matter how well conceived and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be considered relative to their costs. Because of the inherent limitations in all control systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absolute assurance that all control issues and instances of fraud, if any, have been detected. These inherent limitations include the realities that judgments in decision making can be faulty, and that breakdowns can occur because of a simple error or mistake. Additionally, controls can be circumvented by the individual acts of some persons, by collusion of two or more people or by management override of the controls. The design of any system of controls also is based in part upon certain assumptions about the likelihood of future events, and there can be no assurance that any design will succeed in achieving its stated goals under all potential future

conditions; over time, controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or the degree of compliance with policies or procedures may deteriorate. Because of the inherent limitations in a cost-effective control system, misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected.

Part II — OTHER INFORMATION

Item 1. Legal Proceedings.

The Company is from time to time involved with various claims and litigation arising during the normal course of business. Although the results of litigation and claims cannot be predicted with certainty, we do not believe we are a party to any legal proceedings that, if determined adversely to us, would individually or taken together have a material adverse effect on our business, operating results, financial condition or cash flows. Regardless of the outcome, litigation can have an adverse impact on the Company because of defense and settlement costs, diversion of management resources and other factors.

Item 1A. Risk Factors.

There have been no material changes to our risk factors as compared to the risk factors described in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year end December 31, 2017, filed with the SEC on March 2, 2018.

Item 2. Unregistered Sales of Equity Securities and Use of Proceeds.

(a) Recent Sales of Unregistered Equity Securities

None

(b) Use of Proceeds

None.

(c) Issuer Purchases of Equity Securities

None

Item 3. Defaults upon Senior Securities.

Not applicable.

Item 4. Mine Safety Disclosures.

Not applicable.

Item 5. Other Information.

Not applicable.

Table of Contents

Item 6. Exhibits.

(a) List of Exhibits

Exhibit Number Exhibit Description

31.1+	Certification of Principal Executive Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a).
31.2+	Certification of Principal Financial Officer Pursuant to Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a).
32.1++	Certification Pursuant of Principal Executive Officer to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
32.2++	Certification Pursuant of Principal Financial Officer to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350, as Adopted Pursuant to Section 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002.
101.INS	XBRL Instance Document.
101.SCH	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema.
101.CAL	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase.
101.DEF	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase.
101.LAB	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase.
101.PRE	XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase.

+ Filed herewith.

++ In accordance with Item 601(b)(32)(ii) of Regulation S-K and SEC Release Nos. 33-8238 and 34-47986, Final Rule: Management's Reports on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and Certification of Disclosure in Exchange Act Periodic Reports, the certifications furnished in Exhibits 32.1 and 32.2 hereto are deemed to accompany this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q and will not be deemed "filed" for purpose of Section 18 of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended. Such certifications will not be deemed to be incorporated by reference into any filing under the Securities Act of 1933, as amended, or the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, except to the extent that the registrant specifically incorporates it by reference.

Table of Contents

SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized. TELARIA, INC.

By: /s/ Mark Zagorski Mark Zagorski Chief Executive Officer

Date: November 8, 2018

TELARIA, INC.

By: /s/ John S. Rego John S. Rego Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

Date: November 8, 2018